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April 9, 2013
To:  All Prospective Contractors

RE:  “2014 CA Statewide Waste Characterization Study, DRR12059”

Addendum No. 2
To the Request for Proposal (RFP) Secondary Method DRR12059
The following questions were received during the Questions and Answers period.

Q1.
The template seems to allow for only one labor rate per person, per task.  The Note at the bottom of Attachment A states that additional lines for multiple categories may be inserted into the Cost Proposal template, but we would need the template in Excel in order to do so.

A1.
An Excel template is available at http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts under “Miscellaneous”. 
Q2.
Our company applies General & Administrative (G&A) Costs to both Labor and Other Direct Costs (ODCs).  I don’t see that the Cost Proposal template includes a line item for G&A.  Do you recommend blending our G&A costs with Overhead costs or shall we break it out?  If we breakout our G&A costs, we will need to have the Cost Proposal template in Excel.

A2.
G&A costs may be blended with Overhead costs.  An Excel template is available at http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts under “Miscellaneous”. 
Q3.
I don’t see line items for fee (profit) on labor, subcontractor costs, or ODCs.  I also don’t see any mention of fee on burdened costs within the RFP.  If we have access to the Cost Proposal template in Excel, we could add line items for the associated fee.  

A3.
An Excel template is available at http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts under “Miscellaneous”. 
Q4.
If we subcontract commercially useful portions of the work to a business that is certified as both a small business and a disabled veteran owned business, does the subcontracted amount for that business count towards both the small business requirement and the DVBE requirement or towards only one of the two?

A4.
Yes, it would apply towards both the SB and DVBE.
Q5.
We plan on subcontracting a significant portion of the work to certified small and DVBE businesses; however, we are unlikely to reach the 25% and 3% expectations given that the most advantageous combination of expertise and experience is found within our current staff. What are the consequences of not reaching those participation levels (a) if no proposer reaches those levels or (b) if other proposers do reach those levels?


A5.
At the time of submittal, if “Proposer A” provides the expected 25% Small Business participation, as well as the expected DVBE participation, but “Proposer B” can provide only DVBE participation, then “Proposer A” will receive more incentives than “Proposer B”.  However, if neither proposer submits a Participation Summary (Attachment C) then the award will be based on highest score.  Refer to Page 5 of the RFP, Secondary for further information on scoring.
Q6.
On page 10 of the RFP, the Maximum Combined Preferences and Rules for Award section specifies that “…the maximum limit of the combined preference is 15% of the bid amount and, in no case, more than $100,000 per solicitation.” Can you explain how these limits are related to the 25% small business and 3% DVBE expectations (which represent about $535,000 of the advertised budget for the project)? 

A6.
A business certifying it will provide 25% Small Business participation of the total contract services will receive a 5% scoring preference.  A business certifying it will provide 3%-5% DVBE participation of the total contract services will receive a 3%-5% scoring preference.  A business cannot receive more than a 15% scoring preference from a combination of Small Business participation, DVBE participation, and any other preferences (TACPA, EZA, and LAMBRA).
Q7.
Please quantify as thoroughly as possible the assistance we can expect from CalRecycle staff. 

a. Will the staff be dedicated to this work or will this be in addition to their other duties? 
b. How many staff will be available to spend how much time on this project? 

c. How many sampling sites will CalRecycle staff recruit (Task 1)? 

d. How many surveys days will CalRecycle staff complete (Task 1)? 
e. How many generators will CalRecycle staff recruit (Task 2)? 

f. How many diversion audits will CalRecycle staff complete (task 4)? 

g. Will CalRecycle staff be available for out of office work in areas away from Sacramento or only at locations near Sacramento? 


A7.
Staff will work on this project in addition to their other duties, but this project will be the priority.  CalRecycle recognizes that field work and other aspects of this project must often be performed according to a strict timeline, and CalRecycle staff’s participation will conform to the timeline and project schedule as agreed upon by the contractor and Contract Manager.  CalRecycle anticipate that 5 staff will be available to work on this project.  The amount of time, number of sampling sites, survey days, generators recruited, and diversion audits completed by CalRecycle staff depends upon the amount of time estimated by the contractor to thoroughly train CalRecycle staff in these tasks.  For example, if contractor staff spends 8 hours training CalRecycle staff in a particular task, then the trained CalRecycle staff will spend the amount of time (at least 8 hours) needed to complete the amount of work equivalent to what would have been completed by the contractor’s staff in those 8 hours.  CalRecycle staff will be available for work in areas away from Sacramento.

Q8.
Task 2 specifies 50 samples per generator group and 200 lb. minimum sample weights. This is twice CalRecycle’s standard protocol (http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/wastechar/yourdata.htm) for both sample numbers and sample weights. Please confirm that CalRecycle expects proposers to characterize a minimum of 50 samples per generator group and that each sample is to weigh a minimum of 200 lbs.


A8.
The standard protocol was designed primarily for use by local governments doing smaller, local waste characterization studies.  CalRecycle definitely expects a minimum of 50 business sites per generator group to be characterized, and some of these sites may require more than one waste sample to be characterized.  Each sample should weigh a minimum of 200 lb., however CalRecycle recognizes that some small businesses may not generate much waste, and collecting a 200 lb. sample may not be practical.   The contractor may propose strategies to address this.  It is possible that the 200 lb. minimum sample weight could be waived for a certain limited number of samples, at the discretion of the Contract Manager.
Q9.
Please clarify the number of samples required in Task 3. Near the end of the third paragraph, the task overview states “It is anticipated that approximately 200 business sites would be included for this task…” and the seventh paragraph makes reference to needing multifamily samples but it’s unclear how many. Does CalRecycle expects a total of 200 samples (including the multifamily samples) in task 3 or is the total 200 business samples plus multifamily samples? If the latter, how many multifamily samples are expected?


A9.
CalRecycle anticipates a minimum of 200 business sites (and possibly more than 200 actual waste samples) to be included; however, as stated on page 26 of the RFP, the proposer may recommend an alternate number and explain how the study objectives will be met with this number of sites.  Multi-family sites will be in addition to the 200 business sites.  CalRecycle anticipates a minimum of 30 multi-family sites to be characterized for Task 3, but again, the proposer may propose an alternate number and explain how the study objectives will be met with this number.  If the proposer intends to use the 50 multi-family sites required for Task 1 as candidates for inclusion in Task 2, it is possible that some of those sites may not have recycling and/or organics bins.  Therefore to obtain representative recycling data for the multi-family sector, additional multi-family sites may need to be recruited for Task 3.
Q10.
Given that AB341 only requires that a business maintain a recycling container and that the aim of Task 3 is to obtain samples from representative businesses throughout the state, must a business have both recycling service and organics (compost) service to be eligible for sampling under Task 3? Or is having just a recycling container (the only AB341 requirement) sufficient for a business site to be included in this task?


A10.
Businesses need not have both recycling and organics service to be eligible for sampling under Task 3.  Businesses should be recruited randomly, and if they have only recycling or both recycling and organics service they are eligible for sampling.  If a business chosen for the study does have both recycling and organics service, both bins need to be sampled and the data included in the study.
Q11.
Would it be possible to receive a copy of the 2008 winning proposal?

A11.
Yes, a copy of the 2008 winning proposal will be provided in a separate Addendum by April 16, 2013.

Q12.
P. 9 Small Business Participation:  The RFP states “CalRecycle expects a minimum of 25% of the project services to be contracted to a [certified SB].”  Is the 25% threshold a requirement?  Or, as is suggested on p. 5, is SB participation optional with an incentive for inclusion?

A12.
The Small Business (SB) participation is optional for this RFP Secondary solicitation. In order to receive the preference of 5% for SB Participation, the proposer must provide a minimum of 25% for the project services.     
Q13.
P. 9 DVBE Participation:  The RFP states “CalRecycle expects a minimum of 3% of the project services to be contracted to a [certified DVBE].”  Is the 3% threshold a requirement?  Or, as is suggested on p. 5, is DVBE participation optional with an incentive for inclusion?

A13.
The DVBE participation is optional for this RFP Secondary solicitation. In order to receive the incentive for DVBE Participation, the proposer must provide a minimum of 3% for the project services.  If the DVBE participation is higher than 3%, the threshold could go up to 5%, depending on the participation percentages.   
Q14.
P. 17 Task 1:  For the 15 largest disposal facilities to be included in the “survey only” field data collection, how many days of surveying (in total) are required at each facility?

A14.
One day of surveying is required at each of the “survey only” sites. As shown in Table 45 (p. 90) of the 2008 study report, one survey day was conducted at these 15 additional sites.  Two surveyors conducted the survey at each site, since they generally were large sites with multiple gates or higher traffic that needed to be covered.  The 2014 study should be consistent with the 2008 study.  

Q15.
Please provide an example of how to complete the Cost Proposal Sheet (specifically, what is the difference between “Line Item Cost” and “Sub-task Cost”?).   Also, on p. 11, the RFP states “The subcontractor commitments must be identified, by task and dollar amount, and included in the task by task cost proposal submittal.”  What does this mean?

A15.
The “Sub-task Cost” is the sum of all the “Line Item” costs of that sub-task; e.g. Sub-task Cost for Sub-Task 1A of Task 1 would be the sum of the line items for Labor, Fringe Benefits, Overhead, & Other listed under Task 1A: Study Design.  

Section IV, Cost Proposal Submittal – Cost Breakdown section states “The subcontractor commitments must be identified, by task and dollar amount, and included in the task by task cost proposal submittal”.  The Cost Proposal Sheet in this RFP is sufficient.  Therefore, this statement can be removed.
Q16.
What was the final contract value of the referenced 2006 study “Waste Disposal and Diversion Findings for Selected Industry Groups”?

A16.
The total contract value for the Four Part Targeted Studies was $1,034,700.  The portion for the “Waste Disposal & Diversion Findings for Selected Industry Groups”  was budgeted at $432,130 which included 3 subtasks:  Study Design; Sample Site Selection and Schedule; and Field Sampling/Sorting, Diversion Rate Data, Sampling Plans, and Interim Reports.  This budget amount did not include data analysis and the final report, 
which was done in combination with the 3 other Targeted Studies included under the total contract.
Q17.
What was the final contract value of the “California 2008 Statewide Waste Characterization Study”?

A17.
The final contract amount was $635,146.86, which included an augmentation of the original contract to accommodate additional numbers of samples for some of the tasks.  For example, the original Scope of Work called for 10 loads of roofing material to be sampled for asbestos testing, and the augmentation increased that to 100 loads.  Sample numbers were increased for other tasks also in the augmentation.
Attachment 1 to this Addendum contains a list of all businesses who have registered their interest in this contract to date.  

CCC - 307 (Contractor Certification Clauses) have been included herein as Attachment 2.  Please note that for all future RFP’s posted by CalRecycle, the CCC’s will be included as a part of the solicitation package.
All other terms, conditions, and requirements of this RFP will remain the same. 

If you require special accommodation to access documents in this addendum pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Wendy Roberson (see contact information at the bottom of this page).
If you have any questions relating to this RFP process, please contact me by e-mail at contracts@calrecycle.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

{Original Signed By}

Wendy Roberson
Contract Analyst

Administrative Services Branch

Attachments

CalRecycle has not confirmed the certification status of firms who have identified themselves as CA Certified Small Business (SB) or Disabled Veterans Business Enterprise (DVBE). 

	Contact (First & Last Name)
	Email
	Company
	Mailing Address
	SB
	DVBE

	Julie Stein


	julie@cascadiaconsulting.com 

	Cascadia Consulting Group, Inc.


	1109 First Avenue, Suite 400,  Seattle, WA  98101


	
	

	Dieter Eckels 


	dieter@cascadiaconsulting.com

	Cascadia Consulting Group, Inc.


	1109 First Avenue, Suite 400,  Seattle, WA  98101


	
	

	Robert Kurkjian


	robert.kurkjian@tetratech.com

	Tetra Tech, Inc.


	3475 East Foothill Blvd., Pasadena, CA  91107


	
	

	Chang Ching Lin


	changChing.Lin@tetratech.com

	Tetra Tech, Inc.


	3475 East Foothill Blvd., Pasadena, CA  91107


	
	

	Walt Davenport


	wdavenport@mswconsultants.us

	MidAtlantic Solid Waste Consultants


	6225 Sawyer Road, New Market, MD  21774


	
	

	John Culbertson


	jculbertson@mswconsultants.us

	MidAtlantic Solid Waste Consultants


	6225 Sawyer Road, New Market, MD  21774


	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


CCC-307 
CERTIFICATION

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California.

	Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed)
 
	Federal ID Number
 

	By (Authorized Signature)
 

	Printed Name and Title of Person Signing
 

	Date Executed
	Executed in the County of
 


CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES

1.
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.)

2.
DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the following actions:

a.
Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b.
Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:

1)
the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2)
the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3)
any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,

4)
penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations. 

c.
Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:

1)
receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,

2)
agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the Agreement.

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.) 

3.
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) 

4.
CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.  

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State.

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services.

5.
EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:  Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California.

6.
SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:  

a.
All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 


benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108.

b.
The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a).

7.
DOMESTIC PARTNERS:  For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3. 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California.

1.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification. 

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410): 

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment. 

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services.

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411):

1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency.

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 

position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state service.

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420)

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e))
2.
LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700)
3.
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.)
4.
CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment. 
5.
CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA: 

a.
When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.  

b.
"Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax.

c.
Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State.
6.
RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local 

governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the agreement.

7.
AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution.

8.
PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity.
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